

MEMBERS HANDBOOK

2024 – 2025

NEW PLYMOUTH SURFRIDERS' CLUB (INC)

Fitzroy Beach Reserve P.O. Box 3114, New Plymouth 4341, New Zealand Email: <u>mail@npsurf.co.nz</u> Website: <u>www.npsurf.co.nz</u> Phone: Secretary – 0210567659 Facebook: New Plymouth Surfriders Club Instagram: npsurfriders

OFFICE BEARERS 2024/25

President: Donna Stewart - 021742101 Vice President: Neal Pullen - 0212697533 Secretary: Allen Pidwell - 0210567659 Treasurer: Corrine Gouldsbury Bar Manager: Mark Louis - 0275011599 COMMITTEE Lorraine Forsyth (Assistant Bar Manager, Club Hire, Wāhine) David Farr (Webmaster, Head Judge) Daisy Day (Surfing Taranaki Representative, Chief Photographer) Jarred Hancox (Super 8 Series organiser and Coach) Eloise Hay (Minute Secretary) Cory Palmer (Environment) Newton Cockerill (Groms) Mark Dwyer (Immediate Past President, Maintenance Manager)

LINEUP – Allen Pidwell CLUB PATRON – Allen Pidwell

The Committee meets on the second Monday of each month at 5:30pm.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- Club History
- Membership
- Club Services
- Club Activities
- Bar Rules and Host Responsibility
- Clubroom Hire
- Club Tent Hire
- Use of Club boards and wetsuits
- Policies
 - Smoking/Vaping
 - Contest reimbursement
 - Concussion
 - Code of Conduct
- Life and Foundation members

CLUB HISTORY

The New Plymouth Surf Riders' Club (incorporated) was formed in 1991 by a group of 86 New Plymouth surfers who under the urging of Wayne (Arch) Arthur, managed to secure a lease on the New Plymouth District Council (NPDC) owned former campground cooking building. With a great deal of volunteer labour and significant fundraising, the building underwent an extensive renovation and now overlooks Fitzroy Beach from its enviable position high above the foreshore.

In 2009, the NPDC refused to honour the 30 year 'right of renewal' of the lease and gave the Club the option of relinquishing the building with no recompense for the upgrading or purchasing the structure for \$1.00.

At a Special General Meeting it was proposed and agreed to purchase the building. The then Patron, Nigel Dwyer funded the \$1.00. After some legal issues were settled including having to get the permission to purchase from all Fitzroy residents within 200 metres, the Purchase Agreement was signed by then President, Mark O'Connor and Secretary, Allen Pidwell, on behalf of the club.

From the original 89 members we now have nearly 700 members ranging in age from newborns up to 80+ years. As well as a significant number of Foundation Members still financial, we have a wide range of surfers involved in the Club, including retirees, juniors, women, families, members who reside all over New Zealand and from such countries as Australia, USA, England, Portugal, Spain and Germany.

The original objectives of the Club established in the 1991 Constitution still remain to this day:

- a. To promote and preserve the image of surf riding.
- **b.** To provide stimulus and activities for members and their families.
- c. To provide coaching and development courses for both competitive surfers and surf judges.
- **d.** To develop polices and activities that assist our members obtain National Championship status.
- e. To support and fund activities that ensure the protection of the coastal and surfing environment and public access to such, so as to ensure that enjoyment of the coastal environment is enhanced for all persons.
- f. To provide and maintain a clubhouse for its members and their guests.

It took us 31 years but, by following the objectives of our Constitution (to develop policies and activities that assist our members obtain National Championship status), your Club was named "TOP NEW ZEALAND CLUB!" at the Surfing New Zealand National Championships.

The Club is a registered Incorporated Society and complies with all requirements of the New Zealand Incorporated Societies Act. In 2008, the club was registered a charity and complies with all the requirements of the New Zealand Charities Commission



Our motto is: "Come as a guest, leave as a friend".

MEMBERSHIP

The NPSRC now has a digitised membership database, and all members must register. The application is **HELLO CLUB**, renamed **FELLO**

To apply/renew/register for membership, copy and paste the link into your web browser and follow the instructions. <u>members.npsurf.co.nz/register</u>

When your application is complete in **FELLO CLUB** follow the PAYMENT instructions for your subscription. You will find these classes of membership:

FAMILY	\$75.00
SENIOR	\$55.00
JUNIOR (under 18)	\$35.00
COUNTRY	\$35.00
ASSOCIATE	\$55.00

New members joining partway through the financial year shall pay their subscription on a pro-rata basis at the Committee's discretion.

FAMILY

A FAMILY or WHANAU unit consisting of a mixture of two or more spouse/partner, and children/tamariki. When a child/tamariki obtains the age of 18, they are not considered part of a FAMILY MEMBERSHIP and may join as a SENIOR Member. Adult members of a FAMILY MEMBERSHIP have full voting rights, full use of club benefits and privileges.

SENIOR

An individual who is aged of 18 or over. This does not include their partner or spouse or FAMILY/WHANAU, who are ASSOCIATE MEMBERS. SENIOR members have full voting rights, full use of club benefits and privileges.

JUNIOR

An individual who is under the age of 18 and is supported by their parents or caregivers. This membership does not include parents, caregivers, or siblings. Parents or caregivers are considered to be ASSOCIATE MEMBERS. Juniors may not hire the clubrooms nor have voting rights.

COUNTRY

Any individual or FAMILY/ WHANAU who do not reside in New Plymouth and more than 50 kilometres of the Clubrooms. Members of other Surf Riding Clubs may join as COUNTRY members. COUNTRY members do not have voting rights.

ASSOCIATE MEMBERS

Individuals who support the club and the objectives set out in the constitution. They have neither no voting rights nor the right to hire the clubrooms.

All applications are subject to approval by the Committee. The New Plymouth Surfriders' Club reserves the right to not accept any membership application they consider may be detrimental to the reputation of the Club.

CLUB SERVICES

CLUBROOMS

Keys to the Clubrooms are available to Senior Members (subject to the approval of the Committee). The door codes to the male and female changing rooms are available to all financial members subject to members treating this facility with respect. Any abuse of this privilege will have consequences as decided by the Committee.

BAR FACILITIES

The Clubrooms bar and kitchen facilities are open each Friday from 5.30 until late during daylight saving months and during Winter on the first Friday of each month (see also 'Open Mic Nights' and 'Family Fun Fridays'). Refreshments and snacks for all ages are available at reasonable prices. See also 'Bar Rules and Host Responsibilities'.

CLUB NEWSLETTER (LINEUP)

The Club newsletter is produced bi-monthly and emailed to members as well as being available on our Facebook page and website. Editorial and photographic contributions are welcome and may be submitted by email to mail@npsurf,.co.nz

CLUB WEBSITE - www.npsurf.co.nz

Editorial and photographic contributions are welcome and may be submitted by email to mail@npsurf.co.nz

CLUB BOARDS AND WET SUITS

A selection of soft top boards are available from the changing rooms on application for the door code. For other board and wetsuit use, refer to 'Use of Club Boards & Wetsuits'.

CONTEST ENTRY SUPPORT

The Club may refund financial club members two-thirds of an entry fee paid to enter Surfing New Zealand (SNZ) sanctioned surfing competitions held outside of the Taranaki region but including the SNZ Nationals if held in Taranaki. A limit of \$300.00 per annum applies to each member.

For further information and a Contest Entry Refund Application Form, refer to our website and 'Policies'.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) will be held no later than 31st October each year. Notice of the AGM will be emailed to members, posted on the club noticeboard, website, and Facebook page at least 14 days prior to the meeting.

AGM CUP

The AGM Cup is awarded to the person who has done the most for the Club during the year, as voted by the Committee. It is presented at the AGM.

CLUB ACTIVITIES

The Club organises a number of activities throughout the year. Check the Club Facebook page, newsletter, or website for confirmation of dates and how to get involved. Some examples follow.

OPEN MIC NIGHTS

On the first Friday of each month (excepting January), open from 6pm until 9pm, bring along your singing voice and/or band and strut your stuff to enthusiastic members. For more information contact Bruce Gatward-Cook: <u>bruce@adviso.co.nz</u>

FAMILY FUN FRIDAYS

As weather and surf conditions permit, from 5.30pm until 6.30pm, Groms aged from 8 years to 17 may borrow a board and wetsuit and "have a go" at surfing, with club members assisting. Parents are requested to at least be on the beach watching and, if able to, assist with the fun. Many parents find being actively in the water with their groms to be very rewarding. Members are encouraged to use the Club BBQ on these nights.

WAHINE WEDNESDAYS

Each Wednesday from November to Easter, Wāhine meet for companionship, discussions, and surfing as they wish. Contact Lorraine Forsyth: campsyth@icloud.com

GROM THURSDAYS

Each Thursday from October to March, Newton hosts the groms helping to improve their surfing and understanding of what competition surfing involves. For those intending to enter the SNZ Nationals, Newton runs the "King and Queen of Groms" comp in November to assist groms improve their skills in readiness for the January comp.

FISHER and PAYKEL EASTER MASTERS

The premier Masters' surfing event in NZ has been hosted by the New Plymouth Surfriders' Club since 1991. The event attracts competitors from all over NZ as well as visitors from around the world. Age groups range from Cadets (30-39 years) up to The Improbables (80+). Women's divisions are also included (30-39, 40-49, 50-59, and 60-69) and The Improbables (70+ plus years). Wāhine in the 50-59 Division also compete for the Gail Steiner Memorial. Gail was one of the first women to surf Pipeline and attended every Master from 1991 until her untimely death in 2002. Gail's family donated the trophy. SUP divisions for men and women are available plus THE PLATE division. Those who fail to make a final in any division are welcome to enter the Plate. This is a great social and competitive event which includes the world renowned "Dunga Derby". The "Taranaki vs The Rest invites entry from other regions to form a six-person team (members must be from different divisions to compete for the trophy.

CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS

Club Champs are held annually. The multi-event **Super 8 Series** decides the Open, Over 28, Over 35, Over 40, Women's, and Over 45 divisions. Senior Champs cater for the Over 50's upwards, plus the Men's and Women's longboard and Kneelos, held separately from the Super 8. Divisions ranging from Under 12, Under 14, and Under 18 cater for the groms.

TARANAKI INTER-CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS - Hosted by Surfing Taranaki

The inaugural Inter-Club Champs were held in 2009 pitting teams from different Taranaki clubs against each other in both individual and team-tag format. Sure to be a keen battle for club bragging rights over the years to come.

FOUNDATION MEMBERS FRIDAYS

In conjunction with the Open Mic Night, the first Friday of each month is especially for Foundation Members to share their years of wisdom and socialise with the younger members.

WORKING BEES

Regular working bees are held at the Clubrooms to undertake club maintenance and

improvements and to generally tidy up our environment. All members are encouraged to lend a hand.

SURFING FOR FARMERS

Over the summer we host Surfing for Farmers. This is a nationwide initiative to promote healthy wellbeing in the rural community and is sponsored by many companies who cover the costs. Farmers are welcome each Tuesday, weather and surf conditions permitting, to grab a board and wetties and try their skills at surfing under the watchful eyes of our volunteer instructors.

Started in Gisborne, this service is designed to get farmers off their farm and relax at a new sport, enjoy the company of others who they may rarely see and enjoy a wind-down drink and BBQ afterwards.

WOMAD

Since 2009 we have hosted the TAFT welcome BBQ to the WOMAD performers on the Wednesday prior to the main event. The performers are provided with a full BBQ and refreshments. Many then join into an impromptu jam session.

MID-YEAR AND PRE-CHRISTMAS FUNCTIONS

The Committee aims to hold a memorable mid-year or Spring function each year and a pre-Christmas party for members.

BAR RULES AND HOST RESPONSIBILITY

The President and Committee Members welcome you to our Clubrooms and bar facilities.

Our policy is to serve members in a friendly and professional manner.

For your safety and enjoyment, we provide access to:

- A variety of hot and cold foods
- Low alcohol and assorted non-alcoholic beverages including tea and coffee

By law we cannot serve alcohol to intoxicated people or people under the age of 18 years – ID will be requested when a minor is suspected. Our Duty Manager has been trained in this responsibility and all bar staff are encouraged to attend available training.

Avoid the risks of drinking and driving – choose a designated driver or ask the bar staff to call you a taxi.

Friday Parties and Shouts

Members are welcome to utilise normal Friday bar nights to celebrate a personal or family milestone. However, the use of a Friday night for a large gathering where substantial amounts of alcohol and food are provided for a crowd that exceeds the normal capacity for the rostered barperson to cope, must have the pre-approval from the President. In addition, the member shall be responsible for:

- The cost of additional bar staff.
- The cost of an additional rubbish collection on Monday.
- Setting up deck protection (if required); and
- Full clean-up of the club rooms before 10am on Saturday.

Should the celebration exceed 50 persons in number, the member shall be required to hire the club on a Saturday or other suitable day (refer 'Clubroom Hire').

CLUBROOM HIRE

The President and Committee Members welcome members to hire the Clubrooms and bar facilities. Applications must be made either via completing a form downloaded from our website and/or by emailing <u>mail@npsuff.co.nz</u>. Your application will be considered at the next monthly Committee meeting, following which you'll be advised and asked for a non-refundable deposit. You will need to ensure adequate time is allowed to process your application and the Bar Manager to apply for a special liquor licence through the Council, should this be required (minimum of 20 working days). **NB: To be eligible for member's fee, hirers must be financial Club members of a minimum 12 months standing.**

FEES: Foundation members \$50.00; other members \$100.00; non-members \$400.00; weddings and Corporate Bodies \$600.00. In addition: Cleaning \$50.00; Special Liquor Licence fee \$63.25 up to 100 people; and Bar Staff \$25.00 p/hour each.

CLUB TENT HIRE

The Club has a large, old tent for hire and a new 6m x 4m collapsable unit under the following rules.

- All applications must be made to the committee prior to a monthly committee meeting.
- The tent is available to financial club members only.
- There is a \$100.00 hire fee for either tent.
- All applications must have a refundable bond of \$250.00 prepaid.
- This bond will be refunded when the tent is returned in perfect condition.
- Any repairs and late return charges will be deducted from the bond.
- The tent should be returned in a dry, clean, folded, and packed state by 12.00pm the day following the agreed booking dates.
- It will be the responsibility of the hirer to arrange with a key holder for the return of the tent.
- It will be expected that any damage will be reported, and repair costs paid.

Any organised Club activity will have priority over use.

USE OF CLUB BOARDS & WETSUITS

- Club Boards are provided for the use and enjoyment of all members and visiting surfers.
- A senior member must approve the use of boards by juniors and ensure their return.
- All boards must be returned to the shelves and board racks provided in a clean and undamaged condition.
- In the event a board is damaged, the user must advise a Committee Member as soon as possible with full details of how the damage occurred. If a Committee Member is not available, please leave details at the Beach Street Surf Shop.

POLICIES

SMOKING/VAPING

BACKGROUND

In 2010 legislation passed by the New Zealand Government banned smoking on licensed premises. This included "enclosed spaces for example the NPSRC front deck. The deck falls under this legislation because:

- (1) The deck is more than three metres in depth measured from the front to the doors.
- (2) The deck is normally enclosed on all but one of its sides.
- (3) The remaining side (FRONT) can be closed off with the blinds.
- (4) With the folding doors open the deck becomes part of the bar area which itself is an enclosed space.

POLICY

No smoking which includes VAPING and E-CIGARETTES is permitted on any part of the New Plymouth Surfriders' Club.

Persons breaking this policy will be asked to desist and if they refuse then ordered to leave the premises.

Failure to comply with either of these requests will be reviewed by the Committee as a breach of Club policies and a suitable censure made.

CONTEST REIMBURSEMENT

The Club will reimburse a Junior, Senior or Family member all or part of the entry fee for all contests held outside of Taranaki on the following basis:

NB - Country Members not eligible unless they pay full subscriptions, and only active members will be considered eligible for reimbursement.

A. LIMIT

In all cases an annual limit of \$300.00 will be reimbursed to eligible members excluding selection for a national team – see below.

B. MEMBERSHIP

The New Plymouth Surfrider's Club is the member's primary club. Refunds will not be paid where the member is also a member of another club in the community in which they dwell.

The member is encouraged to wear a NPSRC "T" shirt at all presentations and promote the Club at all opportunities.

C. NATIONALS

Two-thirds of entry fee regardless of location. Should the member win a national title then 100% of entry fee reimbursed.

D. PRO or PRO-AM EVENTS

Where prize money is available 2/3 of entry fee up to three events per annum provided that the entry fee has not been paid by a member's sponsor.

E. AMATEUR EVENTS

Two-thirds of entry fee, provided that the entry fee has not been paid by a member's sponsor.

CONCUSSION POLICY

POLICY

Any surfer who exhibits signs, symptoms or behaviours consistent with a concussion such as loss of consciousness, headache, dizziness, confusion or balance problems, shall be immediately removed from the competition or surf arena and shall not return to surf until cleared by an appropriate health care professional.

RESPONSIBILITIES

Members of the surfer's family, whanau, committee members, parents, caregivers, coaches, and surfing mates all have a role to play in recognising the possibility of a concussion and facilitating early withdrawal from the activity and provision of specialist treatment if necessary.

KEY MESSAGES

Concussion is a brain injury that affects the function of the brain, and the person involved and may or may not result in the loss of consciousness.

IMPORTANT FEATURES

A concussion is not always caused by a direct hit to the head. It may be caused by a direct hit to the face, neck, or elsewhere on the body that transmits an "impulse" force to the brain.

RED FLAGS

Complaining of neck pain. Increasing confusion or irritability. Repeated vomiting. Weakness or tingling /burning in the arms or legs. Deteriorating after being injured with increased drowsiness, headaches and vomiting. Loss of consciousness. Seizures. Severe headache. Unusual behaviour - not normal for the injured. Double vision. Visible skull deformity.

SOME BASIC TESTS

Take person to a quiet place and get them seated .

Look for dilated pupils or abnormal behaviour for the person.

Ask simple questions such as: What is your name? Do you know where you are? What were you doing when you were hit? What the day and date?

Should the injured fail any of these questions, either call an ambulance (best) or transport to an Emergency Medical Centre. Keep surfer calm and do not leave alone.

GENERAL PRINCIPLES

If concussion is suspected after checking for possible neck injury remove the surfer from the activity immediately and begin basic assessment.

Surfers must not be permitted to return to surfing on the day of suspected concussion

Early removal from the competition or surf break.

Extra caution required for a child, adolescent or female as they take longer to recover.

Everyone present has a role to play in supporting the recognition and management of the concussion.

Should any of the RED FLAGS seek urgent medical assistance.

Following medical clearance assist surfer and their whanau during the recovery process.

NPSRC Code of Conduct

1. Statement of Commitment

New Plymouth Surfriders Club (**NPSRC**) expects all its members to act honestly, with integrity, in NPSRC's best interests and in accordance with the law all of the time.

People acting on NPSRC's behalf are expected to comply with our Constitution, Incorporated Society and Charities legislation and always act honestly, conscientiously, reasonably and in good faith, having regard for their responsibilities, the interests of NPSRC, and the welfare of our members and the community we operate in.

2. Application

The Code of Conduct applies to all members, contractors and guests of NPSRC and outlines how people at NPSRC are expected to behave.

3. Our Expectations

NPSRC expects all its people to conduct themselves in accordance with our purpose, commitments, principles and behaviours. These guide the actions we take, both as individuals and as an organisation, our decision making and the way we treat each other and our community.

3.1 Our Purpose / Objectives

- a. To promote and preserve the image of surf riding.
- b. To provide stimulus and activities for members and their families.
- c. To provide coaching and development courses for both competitive surfers and surf judges.
- d. To develop polices and activities that assist our members obtain National Championship status.
- e. To support and fund activities that ensure the protection of the coastal and surfing environment and public access to such, so as to ensure that enjoyment of the coastal environment is enhanced for all persons.
- f. To provide and maintain a clubhouse for its members and their guests.

3.2 Our Commitments

1. Duties of the Committee

It shall be the duty of the Committee generally to conduct the affairs of the Society, to keep usual and proper books of account properly post up, and other records of the business of the Society, and to notify members of intended meeting and the business to be transacted there at, and to prepare and submit to the Annual General Meeting a report balance sheet and statement of accounts for the preceding year. Meetings of the Committee may be convened by telephone advice or by circular letter of such times and places as the President or in the case of his absence, inability or refusal to act, the Secretary may appoint and three shall be a quorum.

2. Right to be heard

Each member has the right to speak at any meeting of the Club whether they have voting rights or not. Every speaker has the right to be heard without interruption or dissent. Should the subject of the speaker be objected to (hate speech, racism etc) the Chair shall determine if the speaker may proceed. If such a decision is unable or the Chair be unwilling to rule then a vote by show of hands shall be taken.

3. Complaints & Grievances

Should a member wish to complain or have a grievance on any matter they shall forward their complaint/grievance, preferably in writing, to the Secretary. Verbal complaint/grievances shall be acted upon if health and safety is involved or the act which bought about the complaint/ grievance must be acted upon to ensure legal compliance. Section 16 of the Club Constitution details the procedure to be adhered to.

REF: The Protected Disclosures Act 2000

3.3 Our principles

- 1. We always act professionally, in accordance with laws and regulations.
- 2. We care deeply about the health and safety of our members and strive to minimise any health, safety and environmental impacts on our community.
- 3. We:
 - Create value from the resources that come under our control;
 - Are inclusive, encouraging diversity and expression of ideas and opinions in line with the behaviours we expect our members to demonstrate;

- Ensure the sustainability of our club;
- Taking care of the environment by looking after our natural and shared resources;
- Are a good neighbour in the community where we operate;
- Are authentic.

The principles of the Treaty of Waitangi. Consultation is a principle of the Treaty so there is an obligation to ensure consultation does take place where Tangata Whenua are likely to be directly affected by the Society's activities.

4. When faced with choices, we make sound decisions knowing they will be subject to scrutiny.

3.4 Our Behaviours

- We genuinely care about making life better for our members, our community and each other. We seek to understand problems and find smart solutions. We treat others how we'd like to be treated ourselves.
- We're inspired by innovation.
- We are purposeful in everything we do.
- We keep an eye firmly on the horizon. Anticipating the things that are going to matter. Not just to our club but to our community and beyond. We're inclusive, authentic, empathetic, and brave.

3.5 Members will be able to:

Rely on NPSRC taking seriously any form of:

- Harassment and Bullying
- Discrimination
- Misuse of Digital Communications
- Risk of Health & Safety; and
- Risk to the Environment
- Breach of Confidentiality and Privacy
- Conflict of Interest
- Fraud
- Inappropriate receiving of gifts and gratuities

4. Disclosure of breach of Code of Conduct

Members who become aware of a breach, or suspected breach, of this Code of Conduct should report it to the clubs President or another member of the committee. People who report any such concerns in good faith are protected from discrimination or other reprisals in accordance with the Protected Disclosures Act 2000.

5. Non-compliance

Any actual or suspected non-compliance with this Code of Conduct by a member or contractor employed by the club will be managed by the committee who will run a fair process for all concerned. Following the investigation the decision of the committee will be binding on any member found to be in breach of this policy. Outcomes may include a trespass order being issued or member expulsion from the club for a period notified.

6. Review

The Committee of NPSRC shall regularly review the Code of Conduct to ensure its relevance.	9/6/2024
Document owner	President – New Plymouth Surfriders Club

LIFE & FOUNDATION MEMBERS

Life Members

Wayne Arthur Simon Martin John Bolton (late) Wayne Yearbury

Charlie Roebuck Karen Day Allen Pidwell Mark Dwyer

Foundation Members

Wayne Arthur Graham Ashton Cameron Ashton John Barnes Chris Batten Graeme Beale **Bernie Bliss** John Bolton Harvey Bowling Peter Briscoe Chris Burr Ted Burrows Stuart Brown Gary Chong **Brian Cole** Chris Connolly Allan Cook Ian Corrigal Sue Curson Karen Day Gavin Drent Nigel Dwyer Merv Farquhar

Tim Fisher Merv Foster John Gardner Alan Gargan Roger Gordon Mike Guthrie **Brett Hanlen** Rocky Hannan Chris Hauton Doug Hislop Gary Howe Brian Huggett Craig Hunter Gary Johns Mike Johns Phil Johns **Tony Johns** Mark Johnson Chris Jury Wayne Koorey John Lovell Alan Mack Trevor Mack

Barry Marsh Simon Martin Peter Mathys Mike McCarten Ross McDonald Eric Meier Gifford Melrose Peter Mould Tom Mulch Gary Northcott Shane Parker Robert Paul Neville Polson John Porter Rob Pulham John Quilter John Redman Howard Reid **Richard Renwick Bruce Richards** Charlie Roebuck Ray Rowson Paul Ryan

Steve Sadgrove **Steve Scholes** Dean Selby J.B. Smith Maurice Smith Ian Street **Ross Sullivan** Andre Teissonniere (late) Mike Tuffery Gerald Turner **Tich Turner** Murray Wagstaff Tom Waite Grant Walsh **Robert Walsh** Marty Whitam Jay Whittaker John Wicksteed Nigel Wilson Wayne Yearbury